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 1       BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
   
 2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
   
 3  Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
   
 4  Committee, commencing at 3:30 p.m. on January 5, 2026,
   
 5  with all participants appearing via videoconference.
   
 6 
   
 7  BEFORE:  ADAM STAFFORD, Chairman
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    APPEARANCES:
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    For the Applicant:
10 
         Jeffrey Crockett, Esq.
11       CROCKETT LAW GROUP
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12       Phoenix, Arizona 85016
   
13  Also present:
   
14       Stephanie Bowler, AECOM
         Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford
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         Kirsten Johnson, AECOM
16       Alex Simons, NextEra Energy
         Trevor Thompson, NextEra Energy
17       Mark Turner, AECOM
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: Let's go on the record.
 2  Now is the time set for the prefiling conference for
 3  Vulcan Solar Project.  Start with appearances,
 4  Mr. Crockett.
 5                MR. CROCKETT: Good morning, Chairman
 6  Stafford.  Jeff Crockett, appearing on behalf of the
 7  applicant, Vulcan Solar Project, LLC.  And on the phone
 8  are Alex Simons, Anna Galanis, and Kirsten Johnson.  And
 9  I don't see, are we -- Anna, are we waiting for anyone
10  else on our -- on our team here?
11                MS. GALANIS: I don't believe so, Jeff.  We
12  have Mark Turner and Trevor Thompson and Stephanie Bowler
13  on as well.
14                MR. CROCKETT: Okay.  Thank you.  I didn't
15  see them.  There we go.  Thank you for that.
16                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Do you
17  anticipate any intervenors in this matter?
18                MR. CROCKETT: Not at this time.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: What has been the public
20  interest?  Have you gotten a lot of public comment so
21  far?
22                MR. CROCKETT: We have not had much public
23  interest in the project.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  So you've got two
25  prefiling exhibits, 1 and 2, both maps.  You want to
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 1  explain those to us quickly, please?
 2                MR. CROCKETT: Yes, I would.  Thank you.
 3  So prefiling 1 is a project vicinity map that shows the
 4  project.  It's in unincorporated Maricopa County.
 5  Relatively short gen-tie line connecting to a solar PV
 6  project with battery storage, tying into a SRP
 7  substation.  And prefiling Exhibit 2 are the proposed
 8  sign locations for the notice sign.  And we're proposing
 9  four signs along the gen-tie route.
10                The southern part of the route is fairly
11  isolated.  You can't get too close to that part of the
12  project.  And so we -- we've got signs along -- it's
13  three signs along Elliott Road and then one that is on --
14                MR. TURNER: 355th Avenue.
15                MR. CROCKETT: -- 350 -- yeah, 355th
16  Avenue, south of Elliott Road, looking -- well, the
17  project is to the west of that site.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Those exhibits
19  are admitted.
20                (Exhibits PFC-1 and PFC-2 were admitted
21       into evidence.)
22                CHMN STAFFORD: Now, can you get me a draft
23  Notice of Hearing in a Word format to me -- when is that
24  going to be -- when will you be able to send that over to
25  me?
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 1                MR. CROCKETT: The application will be
 2  filed on Friday.  We -- we've got the notice pretty much
 3  finished, I think.  We ought to be able to get that
 4  reviewed and over to Tod to look at probably tomorrow.
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And when -- so when
 6  are your publication dates going to be?
 7                MR. CROCKETT: Let's see if I jotted that
 8  down.
 9                Mark, I might turn to you for that.
10                MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.  We're -- Stephanie
11  and I are working with the Arizona Republic and the West
12  Valley View, and those -- we anticipate the middle of
13  next week, both of those being -- going to publication.
14                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  So if I get you the
15  final Notice of Hearing by Thursday this week, you'll be
16  fine?
17                MR. CROCKETT: Yes, but will it be -- will
18  you have it signed ahead of the filing of the
19  application?
20                CHMN STAFFORD: Oh, no.  Yeah, okay.  So
21  just get it to you Friday, then?
22                MR. CROCKETT: That would be great.
23                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Are you going to
24  file in the morning or in the afternoon?
25                MR. CROCKETT: Hadn't gotten that far.  I
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 1  think probably morning sometime.
 2                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Good.  All right.
 3  That will make it easier for everybody.
 4                MR. CROCKETT: Yeah.
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Now, for Notice of
 6  Hearing, are you going to do a social media outreach for
 7  that as well?
 8                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
 9                CHMN STAFFORD: Like a mile radius of the
10  project?
11                MR. CROCKETT: You know, again, I'll ask
12  maybe Mark to comment on the scope of the notice on -- I
13  thought -- I thought we were going out about two miles.
14  Mark, do I have that right?
15                MR. TURNER: Yes, sir, we did a standard
16  two-mile buffer around it, but then we did have two
17  bulged-out areas to grab along Elliott Road where there
18  are -- there's a community of about 15 homes west of our
19  project area, and then we bulged out a little bit on the
20  northeast side as we got up near the Arlington Elementary
21  School where there's a platted community called Phoenix
22  West.  And we grabbed that entire community as part of
23  our notification area.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And then so -- and
25  then after you file the application, you'll have them
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 1  available at some public locations, a couple libraries,
 2  city hall, something?
 3                MR. CROCKETT: Yes, we will --
 4                MR. TURNER: Yes.
 5                MR. CROCKETT: Oh, go ahead, Mark.
 6                MR. TURNER: I'm sorry.  The Buckeye has
 7  two -- two libraries, the main branch and the Coyote
 8  branch.  Those are the closest libraries to the project
 9  area.
10                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And the areas of
11  affected jurisdiction?
12                MR. CROCKETT: Maricopa County and Arizona
13  State Land Department.
14                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  And we're doing
15  the evidentiary hearing, I'm assuming, in Goodyear?
16                MR. CROCKETT: It will be at the Radisson
17  Inn & Suites in Goodyear where we've been before.
18                MR. TURNER: Hampton Inn & Suites.
19                MR. CROCKETT: Oh, Hampton Inn & Suites.
20  Thank you.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: Don't want to go to the
22  wrong location.
23                MR. CROCKETT: I know, well, that's
24  where -- that's where Eloy's going to be, I think, at the
25  Radisson.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And so the hearing
 2  is set for February 23rd to the 27th?
 3                MR. CROCKETT: Correct.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Now, you're going to have
 5  lodging for the out-of-town committee members.  You need
 6  to reserve enough rooms for all the members, including
 7  myself and the court reporter, and we can let you know as
 8  we get closer to the hearing date whether or not any
 9  members will be attending virtually.
10                MR. CROCKETT: We've already made those
11  arrangements.
12                CHMN STAFFORD: Excellent.  And I need you
13  to get me the virtual link for the hearing for the
14  members to me by the time of the prehearing conference.
15  That way we can make sure everyone will know whether
16  they'll be in person or not, and we can have that link to
17  them so they're ready.
18                MR. CROCKETT: We will do that.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  So have a plan
20  for a tour by the prehearing conference.  And this looks
21  pretty remote here, huh?
22                MR. CROCKETT: I mean, it's not as remote
23  as some projects, but it's -- you know, it's near the SRP
24  Hassayampa Switchyard.  There's other transmission lines
25  already existing in the area, so I don't know how much
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 1  interest there is in going out there.  We'll -- we're --
 2  we will have prepared an itinerary and map for the tour
 3  if the committee elects to take a tour.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Now, it's crossing the
 5  Southern Pacific Trail.  That's -- that's a trail -- a
 6  walking trail, not something you can drive on, correct?
 7                MR. TURNER: It is a strange term.  It is
 8  Narramore Road.  It is the road that is south -- that's a
 9  railroad there, and that's a term that they have there.
10  It is truly a road, though.
11                CHMN STAFFORD: No, the Southern Pacific
12  Trail, not the Narramore Road.
13                MR. TURNER: In our project area, it's one
14  and the same.
15                CHMN STAFFORD: Well, I'm looking at the
16  map, Exhibit 2.  And I see Narramore Road is south and
17  parallel to Elliott, and then Southern Pacific Trail runs
18  diagonally south of that.
19                MR. CROCKETT: Yeah, let me ask someone on
20  my team here if they know the answer to that question.  I
21  see what you're saying.  Narra- -- Narramore does look
22  like it's half a mile south of Elliott maybe and Southern
23  Pacific.
24                MR. TURNER: I do know more about this.
25  Narramore is labeled in several places there.  If I could
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 1  go to Google Earth, I can show you that Narramore has
 2  several alignments in this area.  I know that's bizarre
 3  and on the map we're showing that Narramore is also right
 4  along the railroad in our project area.
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And the Southern
 6  Pacific Trail, that's a road, not a trail?
 7                MR. TURNER: It is the road -- I apologize,
 8  this sounds confusing -- it is the road along the south
 9  part.  I had to ask our cultural resource people this
10  question as well.  I wanted to know if that was a
11  resource.  It is not a resource in our project.  I'll
12  have to get a better explanation for that, but it is a
13  route, a road that is almost impassable in certain places
14  west of our area that follows the railroad.
15                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  It goes along the
16  railroad, okay, so it's parallel to a rail line, then?
17                MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  So we won't be
19  driving down that, probably.  In looking at the -- you
20  said there's a couple residences that you
21  notified -- where, if I'm looking at the first map,
22  prefiling 1, where are those in location to the line?
23                MR. CROCKETT: Again, I'll ask one of my
24  team, what's the -- maybe Mark knows the answer to
25  this -- what's the closest residence to the gen-tie line?


Page 12


 1                MR. TURNER: It is 2.3 miles to the nearest
 2  resident.  That resident is on Elliott Road west of our
 3  project area.  Almost identical -- almost the same
 4  distance, 2.3 miles, is to the 355th Avenue and Elliott
 5  Road, and that's where the next nearest resident is to
 6  the east.  Both about the same distance, 2.3 miles.
 7                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  All right.  I wonder
 8  if I should not even have you plan for a tour for this,
 9  then.  Because I -- we'd only be able to go to where --
10  the signs are all at the northern end of it.
11                MR. CROCKETT: Yeah.  And if you look at,
12  there's a lot of farmland obviously to the south.  And,
13  then, Chairman Stafford, just to add to the affected
14  jurisdictions, BLM is also an affected jurisdiction.  The
15  project substation at the southern end is going to be
16  located on BLM land.
17                CHMN STAFFORD: Is the -- so it's a solar
18  facility -- is it a solar facility on BLM land?
19                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
20                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  So I guess
21  technically BLM is not an affected jurisdiction under the
22  statute, but --
23                MR. CROCKETT: Right.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: -- it's affected.
25                MR. CROCKETT: Right.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Well, I
 2  remember when these came up, it's the cost of having the
 3  tour and then not doing it.
 4                MR. CROCKETT: Right.
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: What is the --
 6                MR. CROCKETT: The cost is really in
 7  reserving the bus for the tour.
 8                And, Mark, do you -- do you have an idea of
 9  what the cost is to reserve the bus?
10                MR. TURNER: It's about $1,500.
11                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.
12                MR. CROCKETT: And that effectively is
13  money that -- you know, it's nonrefundable.  Because by
14  the time we get to the hearing, it's late in the day,
15  it's too late to cancel before the next morning.
16                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  But you can have a
17  plan ready by the prehearing conference before -- without
18  having to book the bus, correct?
19                MR. CROCKETT: Mark -- and I guess I'll ask
20  Mr. Turner again -- how -- I assume we've already made
21  reservations for the bus, but do you know when we would
22  be able to cancel that reservation?
23                MR. TURNER: And get reimbursed?
24                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
25                MR. TURNER: It varies by company.  Usually
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 1  within a week, there would be a reduction in cost by like
 2  50 percent if I -- if I cancelled it.  I can get
 3  specifics.  We were still trying to cost between one or
 4  two, depending on if we were going to go south.  As
 5  Chairman just mentioned, it's very hard to go south, and
 6  so we were having to look at what type of vehicles could
 7  be on a dirt road and such.  So there's still some wiggle
 8  room on some of those costs, and -- but I would say if we
 9  had a week notice, we could cancel.
10                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Well, I'm just
11  looking at the map.  It looks like signs 2, 1, and 4
12  would be pretty easily accessible from Elliot Road, but
13  then that's just going to get us a look at the Hassayampa
14  Switchyard, really.  But where the actual line is going
15  to go, I don't see -- I think it bisects that Southern
16  Pacific Trail, which is not going to be feasible to take
17  a bus down.
18                MR. TURNER: It is a dirt road.  The
19  turning around issue, where can we turn around with a bus
20  is what every bus company wants to know, where --
21  where -- show me the exact location I can turn around
22  safely.  So that has been an issue.  Yeah, getting south
23  of that railroad and showing you project features would
24  be a little tough.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.
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 1                MR. TURNER: It's doable, but it would be a
 2  little bit -- a little bit longer to -- you know, in
 3  thinking of the day, it is about a 40-minute bus ride
 4  from the hearing location to this area.  And then if
 5  we're going to four or five locations, so it would be a
 6  four-hour roundtrip if we were going to do this tour.
 7                CHMN STAFFORD: Right.  And this 355th
 8  Avenue, is that -- is that paved south of Elliott?
 9                MR. TURNER: Yes, sir.
10                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  But, again, that's
11  where the signs are, that's where traffic is, but it's
12  not -- doesn't look like it's going to be very helpful
13  for the committee to look at.
14                MR. CROCKETT: We don't think it would be
15  particularly helpful.  The concern I have, though, is if
16  the committee does vote at the hearing to take a tour and
17  we don't have the preparations made, I wouldn't want to
18  delay the hearing.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: Well, ultimately, it's my
20  decision whether to have the tour or not.  But I
21  just kind of take the temperature, poll the members to
22  see what they're willing to do.  Just looking at the
23  setup here, I don't -- let's see, the prefiling date,
24  let's see -- the prefiling conference -- the prehearing
25  conference date is set for February 17th?
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 1                MR. CROCKETT: Correct.
 2                CHMN STAFFORD: Is that enough time to
 3  cancel the bus and get a refund?
 4                MR. TURNER: A partial refund, yes.  As of
 5  right now I've not put any money down on that bus.  I've
 6  just got the reservation played out and we were
 7  finalizing which -- which were the stops, and so I had
 8  some leeway, so right now I've not put money down, but I
 9  intended to go ahead and purchase it, and if you're
10  saying by the 17th I'd probably -- we'd probably lose
11  50 percent if we cancelled, but that's not that big a
12  deal.
13                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Well, I'm
14  inclined to just not schedule a tour.  I guess if members
15  don't like it, they can drive out there, I guess,
16  themselves.
17                MR. CROCKETT: Chairman, we will have a
18  virtual tour of the project.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: Right.  And if you'll
20  have -- and you'll have the key observation points and
21  all that we've become accustomed to that we -- I guess
22  especially if you're showing the nearest resident's views
23  are minimal, I think that kind of really diminishes the
24  desire to have a physical tour.
25                So, yeah, okay, I'm going to tell you not
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 1  to submit a plan for a tour.  It seems like we
 2  don't -- it seems unlikely that we'll need to do it.  And
 3  looking at the map, it doesn't seem like we'll get
 4  anywhere near -- you can see how it's going to look
 5  coming from the Hassayampa Switchyard, but that's pretty
 6  busy as it is.
 7                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
 8                CHMN STAFFORD: I don't know if there's
 9  much to gain from seeing that.  Okay.  We'll plan on not
10  doing a tour.
11                We already mentioned the prehearing
12  conference is set for February 17th.  Is there any
13  litigation or disputes involved in this project?
14                MR. CROCKETT: Nothing that's surfaced so
15  far.
16                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.
17                MR. CROCKETT: And we don't anticipate any.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  So you'll file
19  the application this Friday, the 9th, right?
20                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  I'll get my
22  Procedural Order out.  Have a draft CEC to me and filed
23  by the time of the prehearing conference.  We'll do
24  public comment on the first day at 5:30, as is our
25  standard practice.
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 1                Do you anticipate any public officials
 2  wanting make public comment?
 3                MR. CROCKETT: I'm not aware of any.  Let
 4  me just ask if anyone on the team is aware?
 5                I'm seeing shaking heads no.
 6                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And what is the
 7  permit status for the project?  I'm going to assume that
 8  the transmission line itself is a permitted use in
 9  Maricopa County?
10                MR. CROCKETT: Again, let me ask either,
11  maybe Steward on that -- or Trevor.
12                MR. THOMPSON: Yeah, hey, good afternoon,
13  Chairman Stafford.  So basically from a permitting
14  perspective there's a portion of this that sits on ASLD
15  land.  So we are basically pursuing our right-of-way
16  grant through ASLD, which we should be able to complete
17  later this quarter.  And everything else is transmission
18  easements with private landowners.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.
20                MR. THOMPSON: And, obviously, the BLM
21  portion of the project is handled, you know, through the
22  NEPA process, but kind of a carve-out from the gen-tie
23  here.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  So the NEPA
25  process is for -- is any portion of the gen-tie on BLM
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 1  land or is it just the -- where it's inside the
 2  substation?
 3                MS. SIMONS: I'll take this one, Trevor.
 4                The substation is on BLM land, and there
 5  are no gen-tie structures on BLM land, but the gen-tie
 6  will have to enter the substation.
 7                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And where is --
 8  what's the status of the NEPA review?
 9                MR. CROCKETT: The NEPA --
10                MS. SIMONS: In --
11                MR. CROCKETT: Oh, go ahead.
12                MS. SIMONS: You want to go ahead, Jeff?
13                MR. CROCKETT: Why don't you go ahead.
14                MS. SIMONS: Okay.  So it's in progress.
15  We are just waiting for the Department of Interior to
16  indicate that we can send over our NEPA documents to them
17  for the secretarial review to comply with the memo that
18  came out, I believe it was in July, that indicates they
19  need to review all the NEPA documents prior to submitting
20  the project into the Federal Register.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: For initial comment or --
22                MS. SIMONS: It's for initial secretarial
23  review.  It's a little bit outside of the normal NEPA
24  process.  It was a new request from our administration.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: So what work has been done
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 1  to -- for -- in terms of environmental studies for the
 2  NEPA review?
 3                MS. SIMONS: Oh, we've done the -- we've
 4  conducted an environmental impact assessment, or sorry,
 5  not -- "impact assessment" is not the correct word --
 6  Environmental Impact Statement.  We have done the
 7  biological surveys, cultural surveys.  We're working
 8  through Section 106 right now.  So we have worked through
 9  what we need to.  It's just kind of this extra step of
10  sending it to the Department of Interior for that
11  secretary review.  That's a step that wasn't part of the
12  normal process, so --
13                CHMN STAFFORD: And so that's before it
14  gets -- okay, so the BLM has approved your Environmental
15  Impact Statement, correct?
16                MS. SIMONS: No, they've -- they can't
17  approve it until it goes to the Department of Interior's
18  secretarial review.  And then once -- I'm so sorry to get
19  in the weeds on this, this is --
20                CHMN STAFFORD: Because normally the
21  process would be that you can have -- you do your -- you
22  do your environmental -- is it impact --
23                MS. SIMONS: Impact statement.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: A full-on NEPA review, so
25  it's Environmental Impact Statement that you --
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 1                MS. SIMONS: Yes.
 2                CHMN STAFFORD: -- put together.  It would
 3  be reviewed by the agency.  It would be put out for
 4  public comment, and you issue the final one that would be
 5  published in the Register?
 6                MS. SIMONS: Right.
 7                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  So now the
 8  additional step is the review by the director -- the
 9  Secretary of the Interior and then it's like --
10                MS. SIMONS: Correct.
11                CHMN STAFFORD: -- where is it in the
12  normal process -- it's going to be -- so it's kind of
13  jumped into where -- has the public comment portion
14  already happened, I guess, is my question?
15                MS. SIMONS: No.  So it's kind of right
16  before that.  So the DOI does their review and then they
17  go, yup, you can publish it to the public -- to the
18  Federal Register for public comment and review.  So we're
19  in the draft Environmental Impact Statement portion with
20  this new step of DOI review.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And so then once the
22  Interior gives the thumbs up, it will get sent out for
23  what is it 90-day public comment?
24                MS. SIMONS: Yes, I do think that it's
25  90 days.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And then it would
 2  go -- after that it would get published in the Register
 3  again as the final Environmental Impact Statement?
 4                MS. SIMONS: The -- once we go through the
 5  public comment and we address the comments appropriately
 6  and everything, then yes, the final Record of Decision
 7  and the final draft of the EIS would be published.
 8                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  But there's -- and
 9  how long has the Department of Interior been considering
10  it?
11                MS. SIMONS: Excellent question.  They have
12  not indicated how long their review will be.  But we are
13  hoping that their review would be completed within six
14  months.
15                CHMN STAFFORD: From today or from when you


16  first submitted it?
17                MS. SIMONS: From when we are able to
18  submit it to Department of Interior.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: And you haven't submitted
20  it yet because they are not ready for it?
21                MR. CROCKETT: Right.
22                MS. SIMONS: Yes.
23                CHMN STAFFORD: And you don't know when
24  they'll be ready for it?
25                MS. SIMONS: Correct.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: So it could be six months
 2  plus six months, then?
 3                MR. CROCKETT: We -- we hope not.
 4                MS. SIMONS: We hope not.
 5                If it helps, again, the BLM has everything
 6  packaged and ready to go.  And they've been in
 7  communication saying this project's ready for your review
 8  when you're ready to take it, so we're just -- hopefully
 9  that helps expedite things.
10                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  I appreciate
11  your optimism.
12                MR. TURNER: Alex, this is -- Alex, this is
13  Mark.  You might mention that BLM has done their scoping.
14  On their web page they do have scoping for this project
15  and they do have a web page.  And the latest information
16  on that web page said they'd be done with their review
17  this fall.  So they had started.  I just wanted to add
18  that piece too.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: Good.  That's encouraging.
20                All right.  So for the hearing, I'm
21  assuming you'll have Peaks Audio for all our audiovisual
22  needs and tablets for exhibits and whatnot?
23                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.  All of that's already
24  been arranged.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And the amount of
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 1  the filing fee per the statute, I'm assuming, was a
 2  thousand dollars?
 3                MR. CROCKETT: Correct.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: As you know, the Commission


 5  is obligated by statute to pay the cost of reporting and
 6  transcribing any application hearing, as well as the
 7  actual and necessary expenses incurred by the committee
 8  members in connection with the participation in committee
 9  meetings from that filing fee.  Costs and fees exceeding
10  that amount may, with the applicant's consent, be
11  incurred by the committee and charged to the applicant.
12                Does the applicant consent to pay to the
13  Commission those costs in excess of the filing fee?
14                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
15                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  So we'll do the
16  standard three-day turnaround of the transcripts.
17                Is there anything else we need to cover,
18  Mr. Crockett?
19                MR. CROCKETT: Chairman Stafford, that's
20  all that I have on my list.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: I'll get you the Notice of
22  Hearing Friday after you file, and that will be
23  sufficient for the publication requirements.
24                Anything else we need, Tod?
25                MR. BREWER: No, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Excellent.
 2                Well, with that we are adjourned.  Thank
 3  you, Mr. Crockett.
 4                MR. CROCKETT: Thank you, Chairman
 5  Stafford.
 6                (The hearing concluded at 3:59 p.m.)
 7 
 8 
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 1  STATE OF ARIZONA    )
    COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
 2 
   
 3 
              BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
 4  taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
    true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to
 5  the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
    were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
 6  to print under my direction.
   
 7            I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
    the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
 8  outcome hereof.
   
 9            I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
    obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA 7-206
10  (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this
    6th day of January, 2026.
11 
   
12 
   
13 
   
14                    ___________________________
                      ROBIN L. B. OSTERODE, RPR
15                    CA CSR No. 7750
                      AZ CR No. 50695
16 
   
17                      *   *   *   *   *
   
18            I CERTIFY that Glennie Reporting Services, LLC,
    has complied with the ethical obligations set forth in
19  ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
             _______________________________________
24               GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC
                 Registered Reporting Firm
25               Arizona RRF No. R1035
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 1        BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
  


 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
  


 3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
  


 4   Committee, commencing at 3:30 p.m. on January 5, 2026,
  


 5   with all participants appearing via videoconference.
  


 6
  


 7   BEFORE:  ADAM STAFFORD, Chairman
  


 8
   APPEARANCES:


 9
   For the Applicant:


10
        Jeffrey Crockett, Esq.


11        CROCKETT LAW GROUP
        2198 East Camelback Road, Suite 305


12        Phoenix, Arizona 85016
  


13   Also present:
  


14        Stephanie Bowler, AECOM
        Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford


15        Anna Galanis, NextEra Energy
        Kirsten Johnson, AECOM


16        Alex Simons, NextEra Energy
        Trevor Thompson, NextEra Energy


17        Mark Turner, AECOM
  


18
  


19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
  


24
  


25


      GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535
      www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. TBA   PREFILING CONFERENCE   01/05/2026
Brief Temporary Caption


4


  


 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.
  


 2   Now is the time set for the prefiling conference for
  


 3   Vulcan Solar Project.  Start with appearances,
  


 4   Mr. Crockett.
  


 5                 MR. CROCKETT:  Good morning, Chairman
  


 6   Stafford.  Jeff Crockett, appearing on behalf of the
  


 7   applicant, Vulcan Solar Project, LLC.  And on the phone
  


 8   are Alex Simons, Anna Galanis, and Kirsten Johnson.  And
  


 9   I don't see, are we -- Anna, are we waiting for anyone
  


10   else on our -- on our team here?
  


11                 MS. GALANIS:  I don't believe so, Jeff.  We
  


12   have Mark Turner and Trevor Thompson and Stephanie Bowler
  


13   on as well.
  


14                 MR. CROCKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.  I didn't
  


15   see them.  There we go.  Thank you for that.
  


16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Do you
  


17   anticipate any intervenors in this matter?
  


18                 MR. CROCKETT:  Not at this time.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What has been the public
  


20   interest?  Have you gotten a lot of public comment so
  


21   far?
  


22                 MR. CROCKETT:  We have not had much public
  


23   interest in the project.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So you've got two
  


25   prefiling exhibits, 1 and 2, both maps.  You want to
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 1   explain those to us quickly, please?
  


 2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, I would.  Thank you.
  


 3   So prefiling 1 is a project vicinity map that shows the
  


 4   project.  It's in unincorporated Maricopa County.
  


 5   Relatively short gen-tie line connecting to a solar PV
  


 6   project with battery storage, tying into a SRP
  


 7   substation.  And prefiling Exhibit 2 are the proposed
  


 8   sign locations for the notice sign.  And we're proposing
  


 9   four signs along the gen-tie route.
  


10                 The southern part of the route is fairly
  


11   isolated.  You can't get too close to that part of the
  


12   project.  And so we -- we've got signs along -- it's
  


13   three signs along Elliott Road and then one that is on --
  


14                 MR. TURNER:  355th Avenue.
  


15                 MR. CROCKETT:  -- 350 -- yeah, 355th
  


16   Avenue, south of Elliott Road, looking -- well, the
  


17   project is to the west of that site.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Those exhibits
  


19   are admitted.
  


20                 (Exhibits PFC-1 and PFC-2 were admitted
  


21        into evidence.)
  


22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, can you get me a draft
  


23   Notice of Hearing in a Word format to me -- when is that
  


24   going to be -- when will you be able to send that over to
  


25   me?
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 1                 MR. CROCKETT:  The application will be
  


 2   filed on Friday.  We -- we've got the notice pretty much
  


 3   finished, I think.  We ought to be able to get that
  


 4   reviewed and over to Tod to look at probably tomorrow.
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And when -- so when
  


 6   are your publication dates going to be?
  


 7                 MR. CROCKETT:  Let's see if I jotted that
  


 8   down.
  


 9                 Mark, I might turn to you for that.
  


10                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir.  We're -- Stephanie
  


11   and I are working with the Arizona Republic and the West
  


12   Valley View, and those -- we anticipate the middle of
  


13   next week, both of those being -- going to publication.
  


14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So if I get you the
  


15   final Notice of Hearing by Thursday this week, you'll be
  


16   fine?
  


17                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, but will it be -- will
  


18   you have it signed ahead of the filing of the
  


19   application?
  


20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Oh, no.  Yeah, okay.  So
  


21   just get it to you Friday, then?
  


22                 MR. CROCKETT:  That would be great.
  


23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Are you going to
  


24   file in the morning or in the afternoon?
  


25                 MR. CROCKETT:  Hadn't gotten that far.  I
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 1   think probably morning sometime.
  


 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Good.  All right.
  


 3   That will make it easier for everybody.
  


 4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, for Notice of
  


 6   Hearing, are you going to do a social media outreach for
  


 7   that as well?
  


 8                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Like a mile radius of the
  


10   project?
  


11                 MR. CROCKETT:  You know, again, I'll ask
  


12   maybe Mark to comment on the scope of the notice on -- I
  


13   thought -- I thought we were going out about two miles.
  


14   Mark, do I have that right?
  


15                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir, we did a standard
  


16   two-mile buffer around it, but then we did have two
  


17   bulged-out areas to grab along Elliott Road where there
  


18   are -- there's a community of about 15 homes west of our
  


19   project area, and then we bulged out a little bit on the
  


20   northeast side as we got up near the Arlington Elementary
  


21   School where there's a platted community called Phoenix
  


22   West.  And we grabbed that entire community as part of
  


23   our notification area.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And then so -- and
  


25   then after you file the application, you'll have them
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 1   available at some public locations, a couple libraries,
  


 2   city hall, something?
  


 3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, we will --
  


 4                 MR. TURNER:  Yes.
  


 5                 MR. CROCKETT:  Oh, go ahead, Mark.
  


 6                 MR. TURNER:  I'm sorry.  The Buckeye has
  


 7   two -- two libraries, the main branch and the Coyote
  


 8   branch.  Those are the closest libraries to the project
  


 9   area.
  


10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And the areas of
  


11   affected jurisdiction?
  


12                 MR. CROCKETT:  Maricopa County and Arizona
  


13   State Land Department.
  


14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And we're doing
  


15   the evidentiary hearing, I'm assuming, in Goodyear?
  


16                 MR. CROCKETT:  It will be at the Radisson
  


17   Inn & Suites in Goodyear where we've been before.
  


18                 MR. TURNER:  Hampton Inn & Suites.
  


19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Oh, Hampton Inn & Suites.
  


20   Thank you.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Don't want to go to the
  


22   wrong location.
  


23                 MR. CROCKETT:  I know, well, that's
  


24   where -- that's where Eloy's going to be, I think, at the
  


25   Radisson.


      GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535
      www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. TBA   PREFILING CONFERENCE   01/05/2026
Brief Temporary Caption


9


  


 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And so the hearing
  


 2   is set for February 23rd to the 27th?
  


 3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, you're going to have
  


 5   lodging for the out-of-town committee members.  You need
  


 6   to reserve enough rooms for all the members, including
  


 7   myself and the court reporter, and we can let you know as
  


 8   we get closer to the hearing date whether or not any
  


 9   members will be attending virtually.
  


10                 MR. CROCKETT:  We've already made those
  


11   arrangements.
  


12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  And I need you
  


13   to get me the virtual link for the hearing for the
  


14   members to me by the time of the prehearing conference.
  


15   That way we can make sure everyone will know whether
  


16   they'll be in person or not, and we can have that link to
  


17   them so they're ready.
  


18                 MR. CROCKETT:  We will do that.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So have a plan
  


20   for a tour by the prehearing conference.  And this looks
  


21   pretty remote here, huh?
  


22                 MR. CROCKETT:  I mean, it's not as remote
  


23   as some projects, but it's -- you know, it's near the SRP
  


24   Hassayampa Switchyard.  There's other transmission lines
  


25   already existing in the area, so I don't know how much
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 1   interest there is in going out there.  We'll -- we're --
  


 2   we will have prepared an itinerary and map for the tour
  


 3   if the committee elects to take a tour.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, it's crossing the
  


 5   Southern Pacific Trail.  That's -- that's a trail -- a
  


 6   walking trail, not something you can drive on, correct?
  


 7                 MR. TURNER:  It is a strange term.  It is
  


 8   Narramore Road.  It is the road that is south -- that's a
  


 9   railroad there, and that's a term that they have there.
  


10   It is truly a road, though.
  


11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  No, the Southern Pacific
  


12   Trail, not the Narramore Road.
  


13                 MR. TURNER:  In our project area, it's one
  


14   and the same.
  


15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Well, I'm looking at the
  


16   map, Exhibit 2.  And I see Narramore Road is south and
  


17   parallel to Elliott, and then Southern Pacific Trail runs
  


18   diagonally south of that.
  


19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah, let me ask someone on
  


20   my team here if they know the answer to that question.  I
  


21   see what you're saying.  Narra- -- Narramore does look
  


22   like it's half a mile south of Elliott maybe and Southern
  


23   Pacific.
  


24                 MR. TURNER:  I do know more about this.
  


25   Narramore is labeled in several places there.  If I could


      GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535
      www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. TBA   PREFILING CONFERENCE   01/05/2026
Brief Temporary Caption


11


  


 1   go to Google Earth, I can show you that Narramore has
  


 2   several alignments in this area.  I know that's bizarre
  


 3   and on the map we're showing that Narramore is also right
  


 4   along the railroad in our project area.
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And the Southern
  


 6   Pacific Trail, that's a road, not a trail?
  


 7                 MR. TURNER:  It is the road -- I apologize,
  


 8   this sounds confusing -- it is the road along the south
  


 9   part.  I had to ask our cultural resource people this
  


10   question as well.  I wanted to know if that was a
  


11   resource.  It is not a resource in our project.  I'll
  


12   have to get a better explanation for that, but it is a
  


13   route, a road that is almost impassable in certain places
  


14   west of our area that follows the railroad.
  


15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  It goes along the
  


16   railroad, okay, so it's parallel to a rail line, then?
  


17                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we won't be
  


19   driving down that, probably.  In looking at the -- you
  


20   said there's a couple residences that you
  


21   notified -- where, if I'm looking at the first map,
  


22   prefiling 1, where are those in location to the line?
  


23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Again, I'll ask one of my
  


24   team, what's the -- maybe Mark knows the answer to
  


25   this -- what's the closest residence to the gen-tie line?
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 1                 MR. TURNER:  It is 2.3 miles to the nearest
  


 2   resident.  That resident is on Elliott Road west of our
  


 3   project area.  Almost identical -- almost the same
  


 4   distance, 2.3 miles, is to the 355th Avenue and Elliott
  


 5   Road, and that's where the next nearest resident is to
  


 6   the east.  Both about the same distance, 2.3 miles.
  


 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  I wonder
  


 8   if I should not even have you plan for a tour for this,
  


 9   then.  Because I -- we'd only be able to go to where --
  


10   the signs are all at the northern end of it.
  


11                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.  And if you look at,
  


12   there's a lot of farmland obviously to the south.  And,
  


13   then, Chairman Stafford, just to add to the affected
  


14   jurisdictions, BLM is also an affected jurisdiction.  The
  


15   project substation at the southern end is going to be
  


16   located on BLM land.
  


17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is the -- so it's a solar
  


18   facility -- is it a solar facility on BLM land?
  


19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So I guess
  


21   technically BLM is not an affected jurisdiction under the
  


22   statute, but --
  


23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- it's affected.
  


25                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, I
  


 2   remember when these came up, it's the cost of having the
  


 3   tour and then not doing it.
  


 4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What is the --
  


 6                 MR. CROCKETT:  The cost is really in
  


 7   reserving the bus for the tour.
  


 8                 And, Mark, do you -- do you have an idea of
  


 9   what the cost is to reserve the bus?
  


10                 MR. TURNER:  It's about $1,500.
  


11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  


12                 MR. CROCKETT:  And that effectively is
  


13   money that -- you know, it's nonrefundable.  Because by
  


14   the time we get to the hearing, it's late in the day,
  


15   it's too late to cancel before the next morning.
  


16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  But you can have a
  


17   plan ready by the prehearing conference before -- without
  


18   having to book the bus, correct?
  


19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Mark -- and I guess I'll ask
  


20   Mr. Turner again -- how -- I assume we've already made
  


21   reservations for the bus, but do you know when we would
  


22   be able to cancel that reservation?
  


23                 MR. TURNER:  And get reimbursed?
  


24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


25                 MR. TURNER:  It varies by company.  Usually
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 1   within a week, there would be a reduction in cost by like
  


 2   50 percent if I -- if I cancelled it.  I can get
  


 3   specifics.  We were still trying to cost between one or
  


 4   two, depending on if we were going to go south.  As
  


 5   Chairman just mentioned, it's very hard to go south, and
  


 6   so we were having to look at what type of vehicles could
  


 7   be on a dirt road and such.  So there's still some wiggle
  


 8   room on some of those costs, and -- but I would say if we
  


 9   had a week notice, we could cancel.
  


10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Well, I'm just
  


11   looking at the map.  It looks like signs 2, 1, and 4
  


12   would be pretty easily accessible from Elliot Road, but
  


13   then that's just going to get us a look at the Hassayampa
  


14   Switchyard, really.  But where the actual line is going
  


15   to go, I don't see -- I think it bisects that Southern
  


16   Pacific Trail, which is not going to be feasible to take
  


17   a bus down.
  


18                 MR. TURNER:  It is a dirt road.  The
  


19   turning around issue, where can we turn around with a bus
  


20   is what every bus company wants to know, where --
  


21   where -- show me the exact location I can turn around
  


22   safely.  So that has been an issue.  Yeah, getting south
  


23   of that railroad and showing you project features would
  


24   be a little tough.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
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 1                 MR. TURNER:  It's doable, but it would be a
  


 2   little bit -- a little bit longer to -- you know, in
  


 3   thinking of the day, it is about a 40-minute bus ride
  


 4   from the hearing location to this area.  And then if
  


 5   we're going to four or five locations, so it would be a
  


 6   four-hour roundtrip if we were going to do this tour.
  


 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Right.  And this 355th
  


 8   Avenue, is that -- is that paved south of Elliott?
  


 9                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir.
  


10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  But, again, that's
  


11   where the signs are, that's where traffic is, but it's
  


12   not -- doesn't look like it's going to be very helpful
  


13   for the committee to look at.
  


14                 MR. CROCKETT:  We don't think it would be
  


15   particularly helpful.  The concern I have, though, is if
  


16   the committee does vote at the hearing to take a tour and
  


17   we don't have the preparations made, I wouldn't want to
  


18   delay the hearing.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Well, ultimately, it's my
  


20   decision whether to have the tour or not.  But I
  


21   just kind of take the temperature, poll the members to
  


22   see what they're willing to do.  Just looking at the
  


23   setup here, I don't -- let's see, the prefiling date,
  


24   let's see -- the prefiling conference -- the prehearing
  


25   conference date is set for February 17th?
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 1                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.
  


 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is that enough time to
  


 3   cancel the bus and get a refund?
  


 4                 MR. TURNER:  A partial refund, yes.  As of
  


 5   right now I've not put any money down on that bus.  I've
  


 6   just got the reservation played out and we were
  


 7   finalizing which -- which were the stops, and so I had
  


 8   some leeway, so right now I've not put money down, but I
  


 9   intended to go ahead and purchase it, and if you're
  


10   saying by the 17th I'd probably -- we'd probably lose
  


11   50 percent if we cancelled, but that's not that big a
  


12   deal.
  


13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, I'm
  


14   inclined to just not schedule a tour.  I guess if members
  


15   don't like it, they can drive out there, I guess,
  


16   themselves.
  


17                 MR. CROCKETT:  Chairman, we will have a
  


18   virtual tour of the project.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Right.  And if you'll
  


20   have -- and you'll have the key observation points and
  


21   all that we've become accustomed to that we -- I guess
  


22   especially if you're showing the nearest resident's views
  


23   are minimal, I think that kind of really diminishes the
  


24   desire to have a physical tour.
  


25                 So, yeah, okay, I'm going to tell you not
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 1   to submit a plan for a tour.  It seems like we
  


 2   don't -- it seems unlikely that we'll need to do it.  And
  


 3   looking at the map, it doesn't seem like we'll get
  


 4   anywhere near -- you can see how it's going to look
  


 5   coming from the Hassayampa Switchyard, but that's pretty
  


 6   busy as it is.
  


 7                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I don't know if there's
  


 9   much to gain from seeing that.  Okay.  We'll plan on not
  


10   doing a tour.
  


11                 We already mentioned the prehearing
  


12   conference is set for February 17th.  Is there any
  


13   litigation or disputes involved in this project?
  


14                 MR. CROCKETT:  Nothing that's surfaced so
  


15   far.
  


16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  


17                 MR. CROCKETT:  And we don't anticipate any.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So you'll file
  


19   the application this Friday, the 9th, right?
  


20                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I'll get my
  


22   Procedural Order out.  Have a draft CEC to me and filed
  


23   by the time of the prehearing conference.  We'll do
  


24   public comment on the first day at 5:30, as is our
  


25   standard practice.
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 1                 Do you anticipate any public officials
  


 2   wanting make public comment?
  


 3                 MR. CROCKETT:  I'm not aware of any.  Let
  


 4   me just ask if anyone on the team is aware?
  


 5                 I'm seeing shaking heads no.
  


 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And what is the
  


 7   permit status for the project?  I'm going to assume that
  


 8   the transmission line itself is a permitted use in
  


 9   Maricopa County?
  


10                 MR. CROCKETT:  Again, let me ask either,
  


11   maybe Steward on that -- or Trevor.
  


12                 MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, hey, good afternoon,
  


13   Chairman Stafford.  So basically from a permitting
  


14   perspective there's a portion of this that sits on ASLD
  


15   land.  So we are basically pursuing our right-of-way
  


16   grant through ASLD, which we should be able to complete
  


17   later this quarter.  And everything else is transmission
  


18   easements with private landowners.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  


20                 MR. THOMPSON:  And, obviously, the BLM
  


21   portion of the project is handled, you know, through the
  


22   NEPA process, but kind of a carve-out from the gen-tie
  


23   here.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So the NEPA
  


25   process is for -- is any portion of the gen-tie on BLM
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 1   land or is it just the -- where it's inside the
  


 2   substation?
  


 3                 MS. SIMONS:  I'll take this one, Trevor.
  


 4                 The substation is on BLM land, and there
  


 5   are no gen-tie structures on BLM land, but the gen-tie
  


 6   will have to enter the substation.
  


 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And where is --
  


 8   what's the status of the NEPA review?
  


 9                 MR. CROCKETT:  The NEPA --
  


10                 MS. SIMONS:  In --
  


11                 MR. CROCKETT:  Oh, go ahead.
  


12                 MS. SIMONS:  You want to go ahead, Jeff?
  


13                 MR. CROCKETT:  Why don't you go ahead.
  


14                 MS. SIMONS:  Okay.  So it's in progress.
  


15   We are just waiting for the Department of Interior to
  


16   indicate that we can send over our NEPA documents to them
  


17   for the secretarial review to comply with the memo that
  


18   came out, I believe it was in July, that indicates they
  


19   need to review all the NEPA documents prior to submitting
  


20   the project into the Federal Register.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  For initial comment or --
  


22                 MS. SIMONS:  It's for initial secretarial
  


23   review.  It's a little bit outside of the normal NEPA
  


24   process.  It was a new request from our administration.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So what work has been done
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 1   to -- for -- in terms of environmental studies for the
  


 2   NEPA review?
  


 3                 MS. SIMONS:  Oh, we've done the -- we've
  


 4   conducted an environmental impact assessment, or sorry,
  


 5   not -- "impact assessment" is not the correct word --
  


 6   Environmental Impact Statement.  We have done the
  


 7   biological surveys, cultural surveys.  We're working
  


 8   through Section 106 right now.  So we have worked through
  


 9   what we need to.  It's just kind of this extra step of
  


10   sending it to the Department of Interior for that
  


11   secretary review.  That's a step that wasn't part of the
  


12   normal process, so --
  


13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And so that's before it
  


14   gets -- okay, so the BLM has approved your Environmental
  


15   Impact Statement, correct?
  


16                 MS. SIMONS:  No, they've -- they can't
  


17   approve it until it goes to the Department of Interior's
  


18   secretarial review.  And then once -- I'm so sorry to get
  


19   in the weeds on this, this is --
  


20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Because normally the
  


21   process would be that you can have -- you do your -- you
  


22   do your environmental -- is it impact --
  


23                 MS. SIMONS:  Impact statement.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  A full-on NEPA review, so
  


25   it's Environmental Impact Statement that you --
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 1                 MS. SIMONS:  Yes.
  


 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- put together.  It would
  


 3   be reviewed by the agency.  It would be put out for
  


 4   public comment, and you issue the final one that would be
  


 5   published in the Register?
  


 6                 MS. SIMONS:  Right.
  


 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So now the
  


 8   additional step is the review by the director -- the
  


 9   Secretary of the Interior and then it's like --
  


10                 MS. SIMONS:  Correct.
  


11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- where is it in the
  


12   normal process -- it's going to be -- so it's kind of
  


13   jumped into where -- has the public comment portion
  


14   already happened, I guess, is my question?
  


15                 MS. SIMONS:  No.  So it's kind of right
  


16   before that.  So the DOI does their review and then they
  


17   go, yup, you can publish it to the public -- to the
  


18   Federal Register for public comment and review.  So we're
  


19   in the draft Environmental Impact Statement portion with
  


20   this new step of DOI review.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And so then once the
  


22   Interior gives the thumbs up, it will get sent out for
  


23   what is it 90-day public comment?
  


24                 MS. SIMONS:  Yes, I do think that it's
  


25   90 days.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And then it would
  


 2   go -- after that it would get published in the Register
  


 3   again as the final Environmental Impact Statement?
  


 4                 MS. SIMONS:  The -- once we go through the
  


 5   public comment and we address the comments appropriately
  


 6   and everything, then yes, the final Record of Decision
  


 7   and the final draft of the EIS would be published.
  


 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  But there's -- and
  


 9   how long has the Department of Interior been considering
  


10   it?
  


11                 MS. SIMONS:  Excellent question.  They have
  


12   not indicated how long their review will be.  But we are
  


13   hoping that their review would be completed within six
  


14   months.
  


15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  From today or from when you
  


16   first submitted it?
  


17                 MS. SIMONS:  From when we are able to
  


18   submit it to Department of Interior.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you haven't submitted
  


20   it yet because they are not ready for it?
  


21                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.
  


22                 MS. SIMONS:  Yes.
  


23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you don't know when
  


24   they'll be ready for it?
  


25                 MS. SIMONS:  Correct.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So it could be six months
  


 2   plus six months, then?
  


 3                 MR. CROCKETT:  We -- we hope not.
  


 4                 MS. SIMONS:  We hope not.
  


 5                 If it helps, again, the BLM has everything
  


 6   packaged and ready to go.  And they've been in
  


 7   communication saying this project's ready for your review
  


 8   when you're ready to take it, so we're just -- hopefully
  


 9   that helps expedite things.
  


10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  I appreciate
  


11   your optimism.
  


12                 MR. TURNER:  Alex, this is -- Alex, this is
  


13   Mark.  You might mention that BLM has done their scoping.
  


14   On their web page they do have scoping for this project
  


15   and they do have a web page.  And the latest information
  


16   on that web page said they'd be done with their review
  


17   this fall.  So they had started.  I just wanted to add
  


18   that piece too.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Good.  That's encouraging.
  


20                 All right.  So for the hearing, I'm
  


21   assuming you'll have Peaks Audio for all our audiovisual
  


22   needs and tablets for exhibits and whatnot?
  


23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  All of that's already
  


24   been arranged.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And the amount of
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 1   the filing fee per the statute, I'm assuming, was a
  


 2   thousand dollars?
  


 3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  As you know, the Commission
  


 5   is obligated by statute to pay the cost of reporting and
  


 6   transcribing any application hearing, as well as the
  


 7   actual and necessary expenses incurred by the committee
  


 8   members in connection with the participation in committee
  


 9   meetings from that filing fee.  Costs and fees exceeding
  


10   that amount may, with the applicant's consent, be
  


11   incurred by the committee and charged to the applicant.
  


12                 Does the applicant consent to pay to the
  


13   Commission those costs in excess of the filing fee?
  


14                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we'll do the
  


16   standard three-day turnaround of the transcripts.
  


17                 Is there anything else we need to cover,
  


18   Mr. Crockett?
  


19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Chairman Stafford, that's
  


20   all that I have on my list.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I'll get you the Notice of
  


22   Hearing Friday after you file, and that will be
  


23   sufficient for the publication requirements.
  


24                 Anything else we need, Tod?
  


25                 MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Excellent.
  


 2                 Well, with that we are adjourned.  Thank
  


 3   you, Mr. Crockett.
  


 4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Thank you, Chairman
  


 5   Stafford.
  


 6                 (The hearing concluded at 3:59 p.m.)
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           1        BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting



           4   Committee, commencing at 3:30 p.m. on January 5, 2026,



           5   with all participants appearing via videoconference.



           6



           7   BEFORE:  ADAM STAFFORD, Chairman



           8

               APPEARANCES:

           9

               For the Applicant:

          10

                    Jeffrey Crockett, Esq.

          11        CROCKETT LAW GROUP

                    2198 East Camelback Road, Suite 305

          12        Phoenix, Arizona 85016



          13   Also present:



          14        Stephanie Bowler, AECOM

                    Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford

          15        Anna Galanis, NextEra Energy

                    Kirsten Johnson, AECOM

          16        Alex Simons, NextEra Energy

                    Trevor Thompson, NextEra Energy

          17        Mark Turner, AECOM
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.



           2   Now is the time set for the prefiling conference for



           3   Vulcan Solar Project.  Start with appearances,



           4   Mr. Crockett.



           5                 MR. CROCKETT:  Good morning, Chairman



           6   Stafford.  Jeff Crockett, appearing on behalf of the



           7   applicant, Vulcan Solar Project, LLC.  And on the phone



           8   are Alex Simons, Anna Galanis, and Kirsten Johnson.  And



           9   I don't see, are we -- Anna, are we waiting for anyone



          10   else on our -- on our team here?



          11                 MS. GALANIS:  I don't believe so, Jeff.  We



          12   have Mark Turner and Trevor Thompson and Stephanie Bowler



          13   on as well.



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.  I didn't



          15   see them.  There we go.  Thank you for that.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Do you



          17   anticipate any intervenors in this matter?



          18                 MR. CROCKETT:  Not at this time.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What has been the public



          20   interest?  Have you gotten a lot of public comment so



          21   far?



          22                 MR. CROCKETT:  We have not had much public



          23   interest in the project.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So you've got two



          25   prefiling exhibits, 1 and 2, both maps.  You want to
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           1   explain those to us quickly, please?



           2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, I would.  Thank you.



           3   So prefiling 1 is a project vicinity map that shows the



           4   project.  It's in unincorporated Maricopa County.



           5   Relatively short gen-tie line connecting to a solar PV



           6   project with battery storage, tying into a SRP



           7   substation.  And prefiling Exhibit 2 are the proposed



           8   sign locations for the notice sign.  And we're proposing



           9   four signs along the gen-tie route.



          10                 The southern part of the route is fairly



          11   isolated.  You can't get too close to that part of the



          12   project.  And so we -- we've got signs along -- it's



          13   three signs along Elliott Road and then one that is on --



          14                 MR. TURNER:  355th Avenue.



          15                 MR. CROCKETT:  -- 350 -- yeah, 355th



          16   Avenue, south of Elliott Road, looking -- well, the



          17   project is to the west of that site.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Those exhibits



          19   are admitted.



          20                 (Exhibits PFC-1 and PFC-2 were admitted



          21        into evidence.)



          22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, can you get me a draft



          23   Notice of Hearing in a Word format to me -- when is that



          24   going to be -- when will you be able to send that over to



          25   me?
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           1                 MR. CROCKETT:  The application will be



           2   filed on Friday.  We -- we've got the notice pretty much



           3   finished, I think.  We ought to be able to get that



           4   reviewed and over to Tod to look at probably tomorrow.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And when -- so when



           6   are your publication dates going to be?



           7                 MR. CROCKETT:  Let's see if I jotted that



           8   down.



           9                 Mark, I might turn to you for that.



          10                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir.  We're -- Stephanie



          11   and I are working with the Arizona Republic and the West



          12   Valley View, and those -- we anticipate the middle of



          13   next week, both of those being -- going to publication.



          14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So if I get you the



          15   final Notice of Hearing by Thursday this week, you'll be



          16   fine?



          17                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, but will it be -- will



          18   you have it signed ahead of the filing of the



          19   application?



          20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Oh, no.  Yeah, okay.  So



          21   just get it to you Friday, then?



          22                 MR. CROCKETT:  That would be great.



          23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Are you going to



          24   file in the morning or in the afternoon?



          25                 MR. CROCKETT:  Hadn't gotten that far.  I
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           1   think probably morning sometime.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Good.  All right.



           3   That will make it easier for everybody.



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, for Notice of



           6   Hearing, are you going to do a social media outreach for



           7   that as well?



           8                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



           9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Like a mile radius of the



          10   project?



          11                 MR. CROCKETT:  You know, again, I'll ask



          12   maybe Mark to comment on the scope of the notice on -- I



          13   thought -- I thought we were going out about two miles.



          14   Mark, do I have that right?



          15                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir, we did a standard



          16   two-mile buffer around it, but then we did have two



          17   bulged-out areas to grab along Elliott Road where there



          18   are -- there's a community of about 15 homes west of our



          19   project area, and then we bulged out a little bit on the



          20   northeast side as we got up near the Arlington Elementary



          21   School where there's a platted community called Phoenix



          22   West.  And we grabbed that entire community as part of



          23   our notification area.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And then so -- and



          25   then after you file the application, you'll have them
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           1   available at some public locations, a couple libraries,



           2   city hall, something?



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, we will --



           4                 MR. TURNER:  Yes.



           5                 MR. CROCKETT:  Oh, go ahead, Mark.



           6                 MR. TURNER:  I'm sorry.  The Buckeye has



           7   two -- two libraries, the main branch and the Coyote



           8   branch.  Those are the closest libraries to the project



           9   area.



          10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And the areas of



          11   affected jurisdiction?



          12                 MR. CROCKETT:  Maricopa County and Arizona



          13   State Land Department.



          14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And we're doing



          15   the evidentiary hearing, I'm assuming, in Goodyear?



          16                 MR. CROCKETT:  It will be at the Radisson



          17   Inn & Suites in Goodyear where we've been before.



          18                 MR. TURNER:  Hampton Inn & Suites.



          19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Oh, Hampton Inn & Suites.



          20   Thank you.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Don't want to go to the



          22   wrong location.



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  I know, well, that's



          24   where -- that's where Eloy's going to be, I think, at the



          25   Radisson.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And so the hearing



           2   is set for February 23rd to the 27th?



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, you're going to have



           5   lodging for the out-of-town committee members.  You need



           6   to reserve enough rooms for all the members, including



           7   myself and the court reporter, and we can let you know as



           8   we get closer to the hearing date whether or not any



           9   members will be attending virtually.



          10                 MR. CROCKETT:  We've already made those



          11   arrangements.



          12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  And I need you



          13   to get me the virtual link for the hearing for the



          14   members to me by the time of the prehearing conference.



          15   That way we can make sure everyone will know whether



          16   they'll be in person or not, and we can have that link to



          17   them so they're ready.



          18                 MR. CROCKETT:  We will do that.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So have a plan



          20   for a tour by the prehearing conference.  And this looks



          21   pretty remote here, huh?



          22                 MR. CROCKETT:  I mean, it's not as remote



          23   as some projects, but it's -- you know, it's near the SRP



          24   Hassayampa Switchyard.  There's other transmission lines



          25   already existing in the area, so I don't know how much
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           1   interest there is in going out there.  We'll -- we're --



           2   we will have prepared an itinerary and map for the tour



           3   if the committee elects to take a tour.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, it's crossing the



           5   Southern Pacific Trail.  That's -- that's a trail -- a



           6   walking trail, not something you can drive on, correct?



           7                 MR. TURNER:  It is a strange term.  It is



           8   Narramore Road.  It is the road that is south -- that's a



           9   railroad there, and that's a term that they have there.



          10   It is truly a road, though.



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  No, the Southern Pacific



          12   Trail, not the Narramore Road.



          13                 MR. TURNER:  In our project area, it's one



          14   and the same.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Well, I'm looking at the



          16   map, Exhibit 2.  And I see Narramore Road is south and



          17   parallel to Elliott, and then Southern Pacific Trail runs



          18   diagonally south of that.



          19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah, let me ask someone on



          20   my team here if they know the answer to that question.  I



          21   see what you're saying.  Narra- -- Narramore does look



          22   like it's half a mile south of Elliott maybe and Southern



          23   Pacific.



          24                 MR. TURNER:  I do know more about this.



          25   Narramore is labeled in several places there.  If I could
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           1   go to Google Earth, I can show you that Narramore has



           2   several alignments in this area.  I know that's bizarre



           3   and on the map we're showing that Narramore is also right



           4   along the railroad in our project area.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And the Southern



           6   Pacific Trail, that's a road, not a trail?



           7                 MR. TURNER:  It is the road -- I apologize,



           8   this sounds confusing -- it is the road along the south



           9   part.  I had to ask our cultural resource people this



          10   question as well.  I wanted to know if that was a



          11   resource.  It is not a resource in our project.  I'll



          12   have to get a better explanation for that, but it is a



          13   route, a road that is almost impassable in certain places



          14   west of our area that follows the railroad.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  It goes along the



          16   railroad, okay, so it's parallel to a rail line, then?



          17                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we won't be



          19   driving down that, probably.  In looking at the -- you



          20   said there's a couple residences that you



          21   notified -- where, if I'm looking at the first map,



          22   prefiling 1, where are those in location to the line?



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Again, I'll ask one of my



          24   team, what's the -- maybe Mark knows the answer to



          25   this -- what's the closest residence to the gen-tie line?
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           1                 MR. TURNER:  It is 2.3 miles to the nearest



           2   resident.  That resident is on Elliott Road west of our



           3   project area.  Almost identical -- almost the same



           4   distance, 2.3 miles, is to the 355th Avenue and Elliott



           5   Road, and that's where the next nearest resident is to



           6   the east.  Both about the same distance, 2.3 miles.



           7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  I wonder



           8   if I should not even have you plan for a tour for this,



           9   then.  Because I -- we'd only be able to go to where --



          10   the signs are all at the northern end of it.



          11                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.  And if you look at,



          12   there's a lot of farmland obviously to the south.  And,



          13   then, Chairman Stafford, just to add to the affected



          14   jurisdictions, BLM is also an affected jurisdiction.  The



          15   project substation at the southern end is going to be



          16   located on BLM land.



          17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is the -- so it's a solar



          18   facility -- is it a solar facility on BLM land?



          19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So I guess



          21   technically BLM is not an affected jurisdiction under the



          22   statute, but --



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- it's affected.



          25                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, I



           2   remember when these came up, it's the cost of having the



           3   tour and then not doing it.



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What is the --



           6                 MR. CROCKETT:  The cost is really in



           7   reserving the bus for the tour.



           8                 And, Mark, do you -- do you have an idea of



           9   what the cost is to reserve the bus?



          10                 MR. TURNER:  It's about $1,500.



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.



          12                 MR. CROCKETT:  And that effectively is



          13   money that -- you know, it's nonrefundable.  Because by



          14   the time we get to the hearing, it's late in the day,



          15   it's too late to cancel before the next morning.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  But you can have a



          17   plan ready by the prehearing conference before -- without



          18   having to book the bus, correct?



          19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Mark -- and I guess I'll ask



          20   Mr. Turner again -- how -- I assume we've already made



          21   reservations for the bus, but do you know when we would



          22   be able to cancel that reservation?



          23                 MR. TURNER:  And get reimbursed?



          24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          25                 MR. TURNER:  It varies by company.  Usually
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           1   within a week, there would be a reduction in cost by like



           2   50 percent if I -- if I cancelled it.  I can get



           3   specifics.  We were still trying to cost between one or



           4   two, depending on if we were going to go south.  As



           5   Chairman just mentioned, it's very hard to go south, and



           6   so we were having to look at what type of vehicles could



           7   be on a dirt road and such.  So there's still some wiggle



           8   room on some of those costs, and -- but I would say if we



           9   had a week notice, we could cancel.



          10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Well, I'm just



          11   looking at the map.  It looks like signs 2, 1, and 4



          12   would be pretty easily accessible from Elliot Road, but



          13   then that's just going to get us a look at the Hassayampa



          14   Switchyard, really.  But where the actual line is going



          15   to go, I don't see -- I think it bisects that Southern



          16   Pacific Trail, which is not going to be feasible to take



          17   a bus down.



          18                 MR. TURNER:  It is a dirt road.  The



          19   turning around issue, where can we turn around with a bus



          20   is what every bus company wants to know, where --



          21   where -- show me the exact location I can turn around



          22   safely.  So that has been an issue.  Yeah, getting south



          23   of that railroad and showing you project features would



          24   be a little tough.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
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           1                 MR. TURNER:  It's doable, but it would be a



           2   little bit -- a little bit longer to -- you know, in



           3   thinking of the day, it is about a 40-minute bus ride



           4   from the hearing location to this area.  And then if



           5   we're going to four or five locations, so it would be a



           6   four-hour roundtrip if we were going to do this tour.



           7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Right.  And this 355th



           8   Avenue, is that -- is that paved south of Elliott?



           9                 MR. TURNER:  Yes, sir.



          10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  But, again, that's



          11   where the signs are, that's where traffic is, but it's



          12   not -- doesn't look like it's going to be very helpful



          13   for the committee to look at.



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  We don't think it would be



          15   particularly helpful.  The concern I have, though, is if



          16   the committee does vote at the hearing to take a tour and



          17   we don't have the preparations made, I wouldn't want to



          18   delay the hearing.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Well, ultimately, it's my



          20   decision whether to have the tour or not.  But I



          21   just kind of take the temperature, poll the members to



          22   see what they're willing to do.  Just looking at the



          23   setup here, I don't -- let's see, the prefiling date,



          24   let's see -- the prefiling conference -- the prehearing



          25   conference date is set for February 17th?
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           1                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is that enough time to



           3   cancel the bus and get a refund?



           4                 MR. TURNER:  A partial refund, yes.  As of



           5   right now I've not put any money down on that bus.  I've



           6   just got the reservation played out and we were



           7   finalizing which -- which were the stops, and so I had



           8   some leeway, so right now I've not put money down, but I



           9   intended to go ahead and purchase it, and if you're



          10   saying by the 17th I'd probably -- we'd probably lose



          11   50 percent if we cancelled, but that's not that big a



          12   deal.



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, I'm



          14   inclined to just not schedule a tour.  I guess if members



          15   don't like it, they can drive out there, I guess,



          16   themselves.



          17                 MR. CROCKETT:  Chairman, we will have a



          18   virtual tour of the project.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Right.  And if you'll



          20   have -- and you'll have the key observation points and



          21   all that we've become accustomed to that we -- I guess



          22   especially if you're showing the nearest resident's views



          23   are minimal, I think that kind of really diminishes the



          24   desire to have a physical tour.



          25                 So, yeah, okay, I'm going to tell you not
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           1   to submit a plan for a tour.  It seems like we



           2   don't -- it seems unlikely that we'll need to do it.  And



           3   looking at the map, it doesn't seem like we'll get



           4   anywhere near -- you can see how it's going to look



           5   coming from the Hassayampa Switchyard, but that's pretty



           6   busy as it is.



           7                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I don't know if there's



           9   much to gain from seeing that.  Okay.  We'll plan on not



          10   doing a tour.



          11                 We already mentioned the prehearing



          12   conference is set for February 17th.  Is there any



          13   litigation or disputes involved in this project?



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  Nothing that's surfaced so



          15   far.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.



          17                 MR. CROCKETT:  And we don't anticipate any.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So you'll file



          19   the application this Friday, the 9th, right?



          20                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I'll get my



          22   Procedural Order out.  Have a draft CEC to me and filed



          23   by the time of the prehearing conference.  We'll do



          24   public comment on the first day at 5:30, as is our



          25   standard practice.
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           1                 Do you anticipate any public officials



           2   wanting make public comment?



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  I'm not aware of any.  Let



           4   me just ask if anyone on the team is aware?



           5                 I'm seeing shaking heads no.



           6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And what is the



           7   permit status for the project?  I'm going to assume that



           8   the transmission line itself is a permitted use in



           9   Maricopa County?



          10                 MR. CROCKETT:  Again, let me ask either,



          11   maybe Steward on that -- or Trevor.



          12                 MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, hey, good afternoon,



          13   Chairman Stafford.  So basically from a permitting



          14   perspective there's a portion of this that sits on ASLD



          15   land.  So we are basically pursuing our right-of-way



          16   grant through ASLD, which we should be able to complete



          17   later this quarter.  And everything else is transmission



          18   easements with private landowners.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.



          20                 MR. THOMPSON:  And, obviously, the BLM



          21   portion of the project is handled, you know, through the



          22   NEPA process, but kind of a carve-out from the gen-tie



          23   here.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So the NEPA



          25   process is for -- is any portion of the gen-tie on BLM
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           1   land or is it just the -- where it's inside the



           2   substation?



           3                 MS. SIMONS:  I'll take this one, Trevor.



           4                 The substation is on BLM land, and there



           5   are no gen-tie structures on BLM land, but the gen-tie



           6   will have to enter the substation.



           7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And where is --



           8   what's the status of the NEPA review?



           9                 MR. CROCKETT:  The NEPA --



          10                 MS. SIMONS:  In --



          11                 MR. CROCKETT:  Oh, go ahead.



          12                 MS. SIMONS:  You want to go ahead, Jeff?



          13                 MR. CROCKETT:  Why don't you go ahead.



          14                 MS. SIMONS:  Okay.  So it's in progress.



          15   We are just waiting for the Department of Interior to



          16   indicate that we can send over our NEPA documents to them



          17   for the secretarial review to comply with the memo that



          18   came out, I believe it was in July, that indicates they



          19   need to review all the NEPA documents prior to submitting



          20   the project into the Federal Register.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  For initial comment or --



          22                 MS. SIMONS:  It's for initial secretarial



          23   review.  It's a little bit outside of the normal NEPA



          24   process.  It was a new request from our administration.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So what work has been done
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           1   to -- for -- in terms of environmental studies for the



           2   NEPA review?



           3                 MS. SIMONS:  Oh, we've done the -- we've



           4   conducted an environmental impact assessment, or sorry,



           5   not -- "impact assessment" is not the correct word --



           6   Environmental Impact Statement.  We have done the



           7   biological surveys, cultural surveys.  We're working



           8   through Section 106 right now.  So we have worked through



           9   what we need to.  It's just kind of this extra step of



          10   sending it to the Department of Interior for that



          11   secretary review.  That's a step that wasn't part of the



          12   normal process, so --



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And so that's before it



          14   gets -- okay, so the BLM has approved your Environmental



          15   Impact Statement, correct?



          16                 MS. SIMONS:  No, they've -- they can't



          17   approve it until it goes to the Department of Interior's



          18   secretarial review.  And then once -- I'm so sorry to get



          19   in the weeds on this, this is --



          20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Because normally the



          21   process would be that you can have -- you do your -- you



          22   do your environmental -- is it impact --



          23                 MS. SIMONS:  Impact statement.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  A full-on NEPA review, so



          25   it's Environmental Impact Statement that you --
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           1                 MS. SIMONS:  Yes.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- put together.  It would



           3   be reviewed by the agency.  It would be put out for



           4   public comment, and you issue the final one that would be



           5   published in the Register?



           6                 MS. SIMONS:  Right.



           7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So now the



           8   additional step is the review by the director -- the



           9   Secretary of the Interior and then it's like --



          10                 MS. SIMONS:  Correct.



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- where is it in the



          12   normal process -- it's going to be -- so it's kind of



          13   jumped into where -- has the public comment portion



          14   already happened, I guess, is my question?



          15                 MS. SIMONS:  No.  So it's kind of right



          16   before that.  So the DOI does their review and then they



          17   go, yup, you can publish it to the public -- to the



          18   Federal Register for public comment and review.  So we're



          19   in the draft Environmental Impact Statement portion with



          20   this new step of DOI review.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And so then once the



          22   Interior gives the thumbs up, it will get sent out for



          23   what is it 90-day public comment?



          24                 MS. SIMONS:  Yes, I do think that it's



          25   90 days.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And then it would



           2   go -- after that it would get published in the Register



           3   again as the final Environmental Impact Statement?



           4                 MS. SIMONS:  The -- once we go through the



           5   public comment and we address the comments appropriately



           6   and everything, then yes, the final Record of Decision



           7   and the final draft of the EIS would be published.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  But there's -- and



           9   how long has the Department of Interior been considering



          10   it?



          11                 MS. SIMONS:  Excellent question.  They have



          12   not indicated how long their review will be.  But we are



          13   hoping that their review would be completed within six



          14   months.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  From today or from when you



          16   first submitted it?



          17                 MS. SIMONS:  From when we are able to



          18   submit it to Department of Interior.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you haven't submitted



          20   it yet because they are not ready for it?



          21                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.



          22                 MS. SIMONS:  Yes.



          23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you don't know when



          24   they'll be ready for it?



          25                 MS. SIMONS:  Correct.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So it could be six months



           2   plus six months, then?



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  We -- we hope not.



           4                 MS. SIMONS:  We hope not.



           5                 If it helps, again, the BLM has everything



           6   packaged and ready to go.  And they've been in



           7   communication saying this project's ready for your review



           8   when you're ready to take it, so we're just -- hopefully



           9   that helps expedite things.



          10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  I appreciate



          11   your optimism.



          12                 MR. TURNER:  Alex, this is -- Alex, this is



          13   Mark.  You might mention that BLM has done their scoping.



          14   On their web page they do have scoping for this project



          15   and they do have a web page.  And the latest information



          16   on that web page said they'd be done with their review



          17   this fall.  So they had started.  I just wanted to add



          18   that piece too.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Good.  That's encouraging.



          20                 All right.  So for the hearing, I'm



          21   assuming you'll have Peaks Audio for all our audiovisual



          22   needs and tablets for exhibits and whatnot?



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  All of that's already



          24   been arranged.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And the amount of
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           1   the filing fee per the statute, I'm assuming, was a



           2   thousand dollars?



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  As you know, the Commission



           5   is obligated by statute to pay the cost of reporting and



           6   transcribing any application hearing, as well as the



           7   actual and necessary expenses incurred by the committee



           8   members in connection with the participation in committee



           9   meetings from that filing fee.  Costs and fees exceeding



          10   that amount may, with the applicant's consent, be



          11   incurred by the committee and charged to the applicant.



          12                 Does the applicant consent to pay to the



          13   Commission those costs in excess of the filing fee?



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we'll do the



          16   standard three-day turnaround of the transcripts.



          17                 Is there anything else we need to cover,



          18   Mr. Crockett?



          19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Chairman Stafford, that's



          20   all that I have on my list.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I'll get you the Notice of



          22   Hearing Friday after you file, and that will be



          23   sufficient for the publication requirements.



          24                 Anything else we need, Tod?



          25                 MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Excellent.



           2                 Well, with that we are adjourned.  Thank



           3   you, Mr. Crockett.



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Thank you, Chairman



           5   Stafford.



           6                 (The hearing concluded at 3:59 p.m.)
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